

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

LAVONNE GRIFFIN-VALADE  
SECRETARY OF STATE

CHERYL MYERS  
DEPUTY SECRETARY OF STATE  
AND TRIBAL LIAISON



ARCHIVES DIVISION

STEPHANIE CLARK  
DIRECTOR

800 SUMMER STREET NE  
SALEM, OR 97310  
503-373-0701

**PERMANENT ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER**

**DMV 1-2024**

CHAPTER 735  
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
DRIVER AND MOTOR VEHICLE SERVICES DIVISION

**FILED**

01/26/2024 5:11 PM  
ARCHIVES DIVISION  
SECRETARY OF STATE  
& LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL

FILING CAPTION: Disabled Person Parking Permits

EFFECTIVE DATE: 01/26/2024

AGENCY APPROVED DATE: 01/24/2024

CONTACT: Ty Yoder  
503-945-5256  
ty.m.yoder@odot.oregon.gov

DMV Program Services  
1905 Lana Avenue NE  
Salem, OR 97314

Filed By:  
Lauri Kunze  
Rules Coordinator

**RULES:**

735-080-0011, 735-080-0020, 735-080-0040, 735-080-0046, 735-080-0060, 735-080-0070, 735-080-0080, 735-080-0100

ADOPT: 735-080-0011

NOTICE FILED DATE: 11/28/2023

RULE SUMMARY: DMV adopted this rule to add definitions to terms used in OAR 735-080-0011 to 735-080-0080.

CHANGES TO RULE:

**735-080-0011**

**Definitions**

**For the purposes of ORS 811.604 and OAR 735-080-0011 to 735-080-0080 the following definitions apply:¶**

**(1) "DMV" means the Oregon Department of Transportation, Driver and Motor Vehicle Services.¶**

**(2) "Person with a disability" has the meaning set forth in ORS 801.387.¶**

**(3) "Physician" means a person who is licensed as a Medical Doctor, Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine or Doctor of Podiatric Medicine.¶**

**(4) "Travel" means to park a vehicle in a disabled person parking space that requires a permit and then to travel to a location outside of the person's county of residence where the person will use the duplicate permit to park a different vehicle.**

**Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 184.619, 802.010**

**Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 801.387, 807.090, 811.602, 811.603, 811.604, 811.606, 811.609, 811.611**

AMEND: 735-080-0020

NOTICE FILED DATE: 11/28/2023

RULE SUMMARY: DMV amended this rule to update and clarify the requirements for submission of a Disabled Person Parking Permit placard or decal application. DMV also reorganized the rule to make it easier to determine the requirements for each Disabled Person Parking Permit type.

CHANGES TO RULE:

735-080-0020

Issuance of Disabled Person Parking Permits ¶

(1) Individual - ~~The Driver and Motor Vehicle Services Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation (DMV)~~ DMV will issue an individual ~~d~~Disabled ~~p~~Person ~~p~~Parking ~~p~~Permit ~~placard~~, or decal, or both, as described in ORS 811.605 to an applicant whose ~~completed application~~ ¶

(a) Completes a Disabled Person Parking Permit Application/Renewal: Individuals (DMV form 735-265) that includes: ¶

(aA) The applicant's name and address; ¶

(bB) The applicant's driver license number, ~~disability golf cart driver permit number, identification card number, or parking identification card number; and ¶~~

(c) A, except: ¶

(i) When the customer number has been determined to have been fraudulently obtained; ¶

(ii) The customer number is associated with a credential holder who is deceased; or ¶

(iii) The customer number is associated with a credential holder who has surrendered the credential out of state; and ¶

(C) A completed certificate, as ~~requir~~described ~~by~~in ORS 811.604, that the applicant is a person with a disability and included on the application, signed and dated within six months of the date the application is received by DMV. The certificate must show the applicant is a person with a disability. ¶

(b) Submits the completed application in accordance with OAR 735-080-0100. ¶

(2) Wheelchair User - DMV will issue a wheelchair user ~~d~~Disabled ~~p~~Person ~~p~~Parking ~~p~~Permit ~~or decal~~ placard, ~~decal~~, or both, as described in ORS 811.613, to an applicant whose ~~completed application~~ ¶

(a) Completes a Disabled Person Parking Permit Application/Renewal: Individuals (DMV form 735-265) that includes: ¶

(aA) The applicant's name and address; ¶

(bB) The applicant's driver license number, ~~disability golf cart driver permit number, identification card number, or parking~~river permit number or identification card number; ¶

(cC) A completed certificate, as described in ORS 811.604, included on the application, which is signed and dated by a licensed physician, a licensed nurse practitioner or a licensed physician assistant within six months of the date the application is received by DMV. The certificate must showing that the applicant is a person with a disability and the person has a condition that requires the use of a wheelchair or similar low-powered motorized or mechanically propelled vehicle designed specifically for use by a person with a physical disability; and ¶

(dD) The applicant certifies Certification that the ~~or she~~applicant uses a wheelchair or similar vehicle and requires a van accessible parking space. ¶

(3b) Oregon Wounded Warrior – DMV will issue an Oregon Wounded Warrior disabled person parking permit or decal, or both, as described in Oregon Laws 2018 chapter 69, section 2, to an applicant who qualifies. Submits the completed application in accordance with OAR 735-080-0100. ¶

(3) Oregon Wounded Warrior - An Oregon Wounded Warrior placard or decal is an individual or wheelchair user ~~d~~Disabled ~~p~~Person ~~p~~Parking ~~Permit~~ placard or decal with the addition of a sticker saying "Oregon Wounded Warrior" that is placed on both sides of a ~~d~~Disabled ~~p~~Person ~~p~~Parking ~~p~~Permit placard ~~or~~ and on the ~~face~~eront of a disabled person parking decal. ~~If decal~~ ¶

(a) DMV will include a placard or decal, or both, and the sticker when the issuance of the Oregon Wounded Warrior permit is the first issuance of a ~~d~~Disabled ~~p~~Person ~~p~~Parking ~~p~~Permit. DMV will include the placard, decal or both per the applicant's request. ~~If~~ issue only the Oregon Wounded Warrior sticker(s) when the applicant currently has a valid Oregon ~~d~~Disabled ~~p~~Person ~~p~~Parking ~~p~~Permit, placard or decal to which the sticker can be added. ¶

(b) DMV will only issue thean Oregon Wounded Warrior sticker for the person to add to their current permit. To qualify an applicant must submit the following: ¶

(a) A completed application (DMV form 735-265) that includes: ¶

(A) The applicant's name and address; ¶

~~(B) The applicant's driver license number, disability golf cart Disabled Person Parking Permit placard, decal or both, as described in ORS 811.616, to an applicant who:~~

~~(A) Has been issued a driver license, driver permit number, or identification card number, or, except a parking identification card number; and as described in ORS 811.613, by DMV.~~

~~(C) A certificate, as required by ORS 811.604, that the applicant is a person with a disability Completes a Disabled Person Parking Permit Application/Renewal: Individuals (DMV form 735-265) as described in section (1) of this rule, which includes a request for an Oregon Wounded Warrior sticker and, when necessary, a Disabled Person Parking Permit placard or decal.~~

~~(b) Provides a copy of documentation issued by the United States Department of Veterans' Affairs or any branch of the Armed Forces of the United States; that states the applicant:~~

~~(A) Has a U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs total disability rating of a least 50 percent as a result of an injury or illness that the veteran incurred, or that was aggravated, during active military service; and~~

~~(B) Received a discharge or release under other than dishonorable conditions.~~

~~(D) Submits the completed application in accordance with OAR 735-080-0100.~~

~~(4) Temporary Disability - DMV will issue a temporary dDisabled pPerson pParking pPermit, valid for a maximum of six months, to a person whose completed application (DMV form 735-265) includes:~~

~~(a) The applicant's name and address;~~

~~(b) The applicant's placard to an applicant who completes a Disabled Person Parking Permit Application/Renewal: Individuals (DMV form 735-265) as described in section (1) of this rule, except that the applicant need not provide a driver license number, driver permit number, identification card number, or customer number, if one has been assigned by DMV; and or parking identification card unless one has been assigned by DMV. The certificate included on the application must:~~

~~(a) A certificate signed and dated within six months preceding to the date DMV receives the applicateion, as required by ORS 811.604, except that it certifies; and~~

~~(b) Show that the applicant is temporarily disabled for less than four years. If the certificate specifies an ending date of the disability that is less than six months, that date will be used as the expiration date and, if applicable, show that the applicant uses a wheelchair for the period of the permit.~~

~~(5) Foreign Visitor - DMV will issue a fForeign vVisitor pPermit placard valid for 30 days to a person who meets the requirements of ORS 811.611. If the person does not have a disabled person permit or certificate issued by the country that issued the person's passport or visa, the person must provide a certificate meeting the requirements of ORS 811.604(1).~~

~~(6) Program - DMV will issue aone or more program dDisabled pPerson pParking pPermit placards, as described under ORS 811.607, to a program that regularly operates at least one vehicle for the transportation of persons with disabilities, including, but not limited to a nonprofit organization, an agency, a residential care facility, an assisted living facility, a medical or persons-with-disabilities or medical transportation service, or an adult foster care home. Program permits are not transferrable to other program's completed application entities. To receive a program Disabled Person Parking Permit placard, the program must:~~

~~(a) Complete an Application for Program Disabled Person Parking Permit Placard (DMV form 735-265 PP) must that includes:~~

~~(a) The program's name and organization or business name, State of Oregon business registry number and business mailing address;~~

~~(b) The name of the program's contact person person authorized to apply for the program's permits;~~

~~(c) A certification that the program is an organization, agency or business that regularly transports persons with disabilities; and or is an adult foster home;~~

~~(d) The number of vehicles in the program that regularly transports persons with disabilities; and~~

~~(E) The number of placards requested by the program. DMV shall provide a placard for each program vehicle and may provide additional placards if requested in the application.~~

~~(b) Submit the completed application to DMV in accordance with OAR 735-080-0100.~~

~~(7) Family - DMV will issue a fone Family dDisabled pPerson pParking pPermit placard, for each vehicle identified on the application, to a family that has more than one person with a disabilities residing in the same household, as described in ORS 811.609. The applicant must be an adult family member and the applicant's completed must:~~

~~(a) Complete a Disabled Person Parking Family Placard Application (DMV form 735-265 FPP) must that include:s;~~

~~(a) The name, date of birth and address of the applicant;~~

~~(b) A certificate B) The applicant's driver license or identification card number;~~

~~(C) The certificate signed by a licensed physician, as required by ORS 811.609, that the family includes at least two persons with a disability, including the name of each family member with a disability; and~~

~~(e) The number of vehicles regularly used by the family to transport those family members with a disability.~~

~~(b) Certify that the applicant will ensure the expiration date of the placard is visible from outside of the vehicle when the placard is displayed.~~

(c) Submit the completed application to DMV in accordance with OAR 735-008-0100.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 184.619, ~~801.235~~, 802.010, 811.602, 811.607, 811.609, 2018 OL ch ~~69~~811.616

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 801.387, 811.602, 811.604, 811.605, 811.606, 811.607, 811.609, 2018 OL ch ~~69~~811.611, 811.613, 811.616

AMEND: 735-080-0040

NOTICE FILED DATE: 11/28/2023

RULE SUMMARY: DMV amended this rule to reorganize it. DMV also updated and clarified the requirements regarding replacement of a Disabled Person Parking Permit.

CHANGES TO RULE:

735-080-0040

Replacement of Disabled Person Parking Permits ¶¶

(1) DMV may replace a dDisabled pPerson pParking pPermit, including an individual permit, a wheelchair user permit, an Oregon Wounded Warrior permit, a temporary permit, a temporary duplicate permit, and a permit with a parking identification card placards and decals.¶¶

(2) When the required certificate, as described in OAR 735-080-0060. To replace a permit or decal, the holder may apply for replacement in person at a DMV field office or by submitting documents to the DMV Driver Issuance Unit – Parking Permits Clerk at 1905 Lana Ave NE, Salem, OR, 97314. All replacements for program and family permits are required to be submitted to the DMV Driver Issuance Unit – Parking Permits Clerk at 1905 Lana Ave NE, Salem, OR, 97314. The holder must submit an A20, is not on file with DMV, DMV will not replace a lost, mutilated, or stolen Disabled Person Parking Permit placard or a mutilated or stolen Disabled Person Parking Permit decal for any permit type.¶¶

(3) An application for a replacement Disabled Person Parking Permit placard or decal must be made using the application form a Person with a Disability Parking Permit (DMV form 735-265) as described in OAR 735-080-0020 or 735-080-0060 that includes:¶¶

(1) The name, address and Oregon driver license or permit number (ODL), identification card number (ID) or customer number;¶¶

(2) And submitted as described in OAR 735-080-0020 or 735-080-0060 for the specific permit type. The application must include a certification that t:¶¶

(a) The original dDisabled pPerson pParking pPermit is lost or destroyed; and placard is lost, mutilated or destroyed, if applicable;¶¶

(3b) A certification that the applicant continues to qualify for the permit. (2) If a required certificate as described in ORS 811.604 or 811.609 is not on file with DMV, DMV will not replace a lost or stolen dThe original Disabled Person Parking Permit decal is mutilated or destroyed, if applicable; and¶¶

(c) The applicant continues to qualify for the permit.¶¶

(4) Issuance of a replacement Disabled pPerson pParking pPermit for any permit type. DMV will not replace a lost or stolen Oregon Wounded Warrior disabled person parking permit unless the person again provides proof of qualification as described in OAR 735-080-0020(3)(b). If DMV is unable to replace a disabled person permit, the person must apply for an original disabled person permit as set forth in placard or decal automatically invalidates the previously issued permit placard or decal.¶¶

(5) An application for replacement of Program and Family Permits must be submitted to the DMV Driver Transaction Unit by mail to: Parking Permits Clerk, 1905 Lana Ave NE, Salem, OAR 9735-080-002014.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 184.619, 802.010, 811.6072, 811.6097, 2018 OL ch 6811.609, 811.60216 Statutes/Other Implemented: 2018 OL ch 69, 811.607, 811.609, ORS 811.602, 811.604, 811.605, 811.606, 811.607, 811.609, 811.616

RULE SUMMARY: DMV amended this rule to reorganize it. DMV also brought the rule into alignment with Oregon laws 2021, Chapter 630, to identify all Disabled Person Parking Permit placards and decals covered under the rule. The rulemaking clarifies that an applicant must submit information that is less than six months old from a licensed physician, licensed nurse practitioner, licensed physician assistant or licensed optometrist, depending on the type of permit sought.

CHANGES TO RULE:

735-080-0046

Expiration and Renewal of Disabled Person Parking Permits ¶¶

~~(1) An individual, or wheelchair user permit~~Permits and their placards or decals expires on the expiration date of the person's driver license, disability golf cart permit, identification card or parking identification card. The permit or decal must be renewed within one year from the date of expiration of the permit. To renew as follows:¶¶

~~(a) Temporary Disability Permit - at 11:59 pm on the date not later than six months from the date of issuance.~~(a) Temporary Disability Permit - at 11:59 pm on the date not later than six months from the date of issuance.

~~When a p~~ermit or decal, the holder must appear in person at a DMV field office if also renewing a driver license, disability golf cart permit or identification card. Otherwise, the holder may renew by submitting:¶¶

~~(a) The Parking Placard and Driver license or ID card Renewal Reminder (DMV form 735-7353) that includes a Certificate of D~~tificate specifies an ending date of the disability that is less than six months, the ending date of the disability completis used byas the holder's licensed physician; or¶¶

~~(b) An Application for a Person with a Disability Parking Permit, on DMV form 735-265 as described in OAR 735-080-0020, that includes a Certificate of Disability completed by the holder's licensed physician, licensed nurse practitioner or licensed physician assistant~~expiration date.¶¶

~~(b) Foreign Visitor Permit - at 11:59 pm on the 30th day from the date of issuance.¶¶~~

~~(2c) An Individual, Oregon Wounded Warrior permit or decal expires on the expiration date of the person's driver license, disability golf cart permit, identification card or parking identification card. The permit or decal must be renewed within one year from the date of expiration of the permit., Wheelchair User, Family, and Program~~Disabled Person Parking - at 11:59 pm on the last day of the eighth year from the date of issuance, unless DMV invalidates the permit in accordance with ORS 811.628.¶¶

~~(2) To renew any permit or decal, the holder must appear in person a DMV field office if the person is also renewing a driver license, disability golf cart permit or identification card. Otherwise, the holder may renew by submitting:¶¶~~

~~(a) Either the placard or decal described in section (1) of this rule, the holder must submit the appropriate completed renewal reminder or application as follows:¶¶~~

~~(a) Parking Placard and Driver license or ID card Renewal Reminder (DMV form 735-7353) that includes a~~the Certificate of Disability completed by the holder's licensed physician, or an Application for a Person with a Disability Parking Permit, on licensed nurse practitioner or licensed physician assistant and signed and dated no more than six months prior to the receipt of the application by DMV.¶¶

~~(b) Disabled Person Parking Permit Application/Renewal: Individuals (DMV form 735-265) as described in OAR 735-080-0020, that includes a~~the Certificate of Disability included on the application completed by the holder's licensed physician, licensed nurse practitioner or licensed physician assistant; and¶¶

~~(b) Documentation issued by the United States Department of Veterans' Affairs or any branch of the Armed Forces of the United States, that states the applicant:¶¶~~

~~(A) Has a U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs total disability rating of a least 50 percent as a result of an injury or illness that the veteran incurred, dated no more than six months prior to the receipt of f that was aggravated, during active military service; and¶¶~~

~~(B) Received a discharge or release under other than dishonorable condition~~e application by DMV.¶¶

~~(3c) To renew a d~~Disabled p~~Person p~~Person p~~Parking permit with a parking identification card as described in OAR 735-080-0060 the holder must submit to the DMV Driver Issuance Unit - Parking Permits Clerk at 1905 Lana Ave NE, Salem, OR, 97314, a completed Non-Photo Parking ID Card and Disabled Person's Parking Permit~~Family Placard Application (DMV form 735-265 FPP) that includes a~~the Certificate of Disability complet, included b~~on the holder's licensed physician, licensed nurse practitioner or~~Application, completed by the family's licensed physician, assistant.¶¶~~

~~(4) A program permit expires eight years from the date of issuance. DMV will renew and issue new permit(s) if the program continues to qualify and completes DMV form 735-265PP. The form must be submitted to DMV, Driver~~

Issuance Unit, 1905 Lana Avenue NE, Salem, Oregon 97314. The permit must be renewed within one year from the date of expiration of the permit and signed and dated no more than six months prior to the receipt of the application by DMV.

(5d) A family permit expires eight years from the date of issuance. DMV will renew and issue new permit(s) if a family continues to qualify and completes application for Program Disabled Person Parking Permit Placard (DMV form 735-265FPP). The form must be submitted to DMV, Driver Issuance Unit, 1905 Lana Avenue NE, Salem, Oregon 97314. The permit must be renewed within one year from the date of expiration of the permit.

(6) A temporary d.

(e) Parking Identification Card and Disabled Person Parking Permit expires six months from the date of issuance. The permit may not be renewed, but the person may re-apply for a temporary disabled person parking permit by complying with Placard Application (DMV form 735-265PIP) that meets requirements described in OAR 735-080-0020(3) if including the person's temporary disability continues beyond a six-month certificate of Disability, included on the period.

(7) A disabled person parking permit automatically expires and becomes invalid when the individual, wheelchair user, Oregon Wounded Warrior, program or family no longer meets the qualifying conditions. The application, completed by the holder's licensed physician, licensed nurse practitioner or licensed physician assistant.

(3) Expired permits must be returned immediately to DMV. A disabled person parking destroyed. Invalidated permits may not be transferred to any other person must be returned immediately to DMV.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 184.619, 802.010, 811.602, 811.607, 811.609

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 811.602, 811.604, 811.605, 811.606, 811.607, 811.609

AMEND: 735-080-0060

NOTICE FILED DATE: 11/28/2023

RULE SUMMARY: DMV amended this rule to clarify the application process for a Parking Identification Card without a photograph and Disabled Person Parking Permit placard.

CHANGES TO RULE:

735-080-0060

~~Non-Photo~~ Parking Identification Card Without a Photograph ¶

(1) An applicant for an ~~individual, wheelchair user, or Oregon Wounded Warrior disabled p~~ Disabled Person Parking p Permit who does not have ~~hold a valid~~ driver license, driver permit, or identification card and is unable to go to a DMV office to be photographed, ~~must obtain a pay~~ be issued a parking identification card without a photograph for the purposes of meeting Disabled Person Parking Permit issuance requirements, as described in ORS 811.603. ¶

~~(2) To receive a Parking i~~ dentification Card and Disabled Person Parking Permit placard. ~~T,~~ the applicant must submit the following to DMV: ¶

~~(a) An application (DMV form 735-265 NPP) for a parking identification card.~~ ¶

(a) A completed Parking Identification Card and Disabled Person Parking Permit Application (DMV form 735-265 PIP) that includes the applicant's name, residence address, date of birth, height, weight, and signature, and a certificate, as required by ORS 811.604, that the applicant is a person with a disability. ¶

(b) The certificate included on the application, signed and dated no more than six months prior to receipt of the application by DMV and completed by: ¶

(A) A licensed physician stating the applicant is a person with a disability as required by ORS 811.604; or ¶

(B) A licensed optometrist stating the applicant is a person with a disability because of loss of vision or substantial loss of visual acuity or visual field beyond correction as required by ORS 811.604. ¶

(c) Proof of residence address as described in OAR 735-062-0030; and ¶

~~(d)~~ A statement from a licensed physician that, because of the applicant's medical or physical condition, it is impractical or harmful for the applicant to appear at a DMV office to be photographed. ¶

~~(2) The applicant must submit the application and the statement from a physician to DMV, Driver Issuance Unit, 1905 Lana Avenue NE, Salem, Oregon 97314 as required in ORS 811.603.~~ ¶

(3) A parking identification card issued under this rule expires on the applicant's birthday, in the eighth calendar year after the year of issuance or on the date it is no longer medically impractical or harmful to the applicant to appear at a DMV office to be photographed for an identification card, whichever is earlier.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 184.619, 802.010, 811.603

Statutes/Other Implemented: ~~ORS 811.603, 807.021, 811.602, 811.6035, 2019 Oregon Laws, Chapter 15~~

AMEND: 735-080-0070

NOTICE FILED DATE: 11/28/2023

RULE SUMMARY: DMV amended this rule to update and clarify the process of replacing and renewing a Parking Identification Card without a photograph.

CHANGES TO RULE:

735-080-0070

Replacement/or Renewal of a ~~Non-Photo~~ Parking Identification Card ¶

- (1) DMV may replace a ~~parking identification card~~ issued under OAR 735-080-0070 if the card is lost, mutilated or destroyed. ~~The replacement of a disabled parking identification card is subject to the following:~~
- ~~(a) If a statement from a licensed physician is on file with DMV, the person must submit an application for replacement, but does not need to submit a statement from a licensed physician;~~
  - ~~(b) If a statement from a licensed physician will have the same expiration date as the Parking Identification Card it replaces. Issuance of a replacement Parking Identification Card automatically invalidates the previously issued Parking Identification Card. An applicant is not on file with DMV, the person must apply for a replacement must complete a parking identification card as provided in OAR 735-080-0060(1) and (2); and Disabled Person Parking Permit Application (DMV form 735-265PIP), which must include:~~
- ~~(a) An applicant for a replacement parking identification card must certify's certification that the original parking identification card has been lost, mutilated or destroyed; and~~
  - ~~(b) The replacement parking identification card will have the same expiration date as the parking identification card it replaces.~~
- ~~(2) DMV may renew Proof of residence address as described in OAR 735-062-0030, when the residence address of the applicant has changed since issuance of the most recent parking identification card.~~
- ~~(2) Upon Expiration of a parking identification card upon expir, DMV may issue a Parking Identification Card within one year after the expiration date if the person is also renewing the disabled person parking permit. To renew, an applicant must submit the following to DMV:~~
- ~~(a) A renewal application containing the applicant's name, residence address, date of birth, height, weight, signature and a signed statement from the applicant that it is still medically impractical or harmful for the applicant to appear at a DMV office to be photographed. a renewed expiration date. For DMV to issue the card, the applicant must:~~
- ~~(a) Meet the eligibility requirements described in OAR 735-080-0060;~~
  - ~~(b) Submit a completed Parking Identification Card and Disabled Person Parking Permit Application form (DMV form 735-265PIP) described in OAR 735-080-0060, submitted in accordance with OAR 735-080-0100; and~~
  - ~~(c) Provide proof of residence address with the application for renewal, as described in OAR 735-062-0030 if, when the residence address of the applicant has changed since issuance of the most recent parking identification card.~~
- ~~(3) A renewed parking identification card expires eight years from the expiration date of the immediately preceding identification card or on the date it is no longer medically impractical or harmful to the applicant to appear at a DMV office to be photographed for an identification card, whichever is earlier.~~
- Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 184.619, 802.010, 811.603  
Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 811.603, 2019 Oregon Laws, Chapter 15

AMEND: 735-080-0080

NOTICE FILED DATE: 11/28/2023

RULE SUMMARY: DMV amended this rule to clarify and update how a person may obtain a temporary duplicate permit, clarify the definition of "travel," and clarify the period of validity for temporary duplicate permits.

CHANGES TO RULE:

735-080-0080

Temporary Duplicate Permits ¶¶

~~(1) DMV may issue a temporary duplicate permit to an applicant with a valid renewable disabled person parking permit, placard, as described in ORS 811.602, to an applicant who needs a second permit to travel outside of the person's county of residence if the applicant holds a valid Disabled Person Parking Permit placard or decal or a valid temporary Disabled Person Parking Permit and who needs a second permit to travel outside of the person's county of residence. The person must submit a completed application placard.¶¶~~

~~(2) The applicant must submit to DMV a Disabled Person Parking Permit Application/Renewal: Individuals (DMV Form 265).¶¶~~

~~(2) DMV will only issue 735-265) requesting a Temporary Duplicate Permit for travel purposes. Travel purposes means a person must park a vehicle in a disabled person parking space to travel outside of the person's county of residence in another vehicle.¶¶~~

~~(3) that includes:¶¶~~

~~(a) The applicant's name and address; and¶¶~~

~~(b) The applicant's driver license, driver permit, identification card, or parking identification card number, if one has been assigned by DMV.¶¶~~

~~(3) A Temporary duplicate travel permit is valid for a period of up to 120 days from the date of issuance. DMV will not issue a temporary duplicate travel permit with an expiration date that is later than the expiration date of the driver license, driver permit or identification card of the individual applying for the permit.¶¶~~

~~(4) Except as provided in section (5) of this rule, applicant's primary Disabled Person Parking Permit placard, decal or temporary Disabled Person Parking Permit.¶¶~~

~~(4) DMV may issue a temporary duplicate permit is valid for a pertravel permit prior to the expiration of up to 120 days from the date of issuance.¶¶~~

~~(5) A person may apply for a new temporary duplicate permit. The effective date of the new temporary duplicate permit is the date of issuance of the new temporary duplicate permit. DMV will invalidate the old permit upon a current, valid temporary duplicate permit issued to an applicant. In addition to the requirements in section (2) of this rule, the applicant must return the current, valid temporary duplicate permit prior to issuance of the new temporary duplicate permit.~~

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 184.619, 802.010 & 811.602

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 811.602

ADOPT: 735-080-0100

NOTICE FILED DATE: 11/28/2023

RULE SUMMARY: DMV adopted this rule to state how a person may submit disabled person parking permit applications and renewals.

CHANGES TO RULE:

735-080-0100

Submission of Disabled Person Parking Permit Applications and Renewals

(1) An applicant must submit all required documents for Disabled Person Parking Permits and placards, as specified in 735-080-0020, as follows:¶

(a) Individual, Wheelchair User, Oregon Wounded Warrior, Temporary Disability permit applications:¶

(A) In person to a DMV office:¶

(B) By mail to: DMV Driver Transaction Unit - Parking Permits Clerk, 1905 Lana Ave NE, Salem, OR 97314; or¶

(C) By Fax to DMV Driver Transaction Unit: 503-945-5181.¶

(b) Foreign Visitor permit applications - Present documentation, as described in ORS 811.611, in person to a DMV office.¶

(c) Program, Family permit applications - by fax: (503) 945-7981; email: ORDMVDriverTrans@odot.oregon.gov; or mail to DMV Driver Transactions Unit - Parking Permits Clerk, 1905 Lana Ave NE, Salem, OR 97314.¶

(d) Parking Identification Card permit applications - by mail to DMV Driver Transactions Unit - Parking Permits Clerk, 1905 Lana Avenue NE, Salem, Oregon 97314.¶

(2) An applicant for renewal of a parking permit, including Wounded Warrior, Wheelchair User, Parking Identification Card and Disabled Person Parking Permit, and Program, must submit the appropriate completed renewal application with all required documentation as follows:¶

(a) The Parking Permit Renewal Reminder letter sent to each permit holder, except Family and Program permit holders, with the included Renewal Application and Certificate of Disability that must be completed by the holder's licensed physician, a licensed nurse practitioner or a licensed physician assistant and signed and dated no more than six months prior to the receipt of the application by DMV.¶

(b) A Disabled Person Parking Permit Application/Renewal: Individuals (DMV form 735-265), as described in OAR 735-080-0020(1), that includes the Certificate of Disability included on the application completed by the holder's licensed physician, licensed nurse practitioner or licensed physician assistant signed and dated no more than six months prior to the receipt of the application by DMV.¶

(c) A Disabled Person Parking Family Placard Application (DMV form 735-265 FPP) that includes the Certificate of Disability, included on the Application, completed by the family's licensed physician, and signed and dated no more than six months prior to the receipt of the application by DMV.¶

(d) An Application for Program Disabled Person Parking Permit Placard (DMV form 735-265PP).¶

(e) A Parking Identification Card and Disabled Person Parking Permit Placard Application (DMV form 735-265PIP) that meets requirements described in OAR 735-080-0060 including the Certificate of Disability, included on the application, completed by the holder's licensed physician, licensed nurse practitioner or licensed physician assistant.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 184.619, 802.010, 811.602, 811.603, 811.605, 811.607, 811.609, 811.613, 811.616

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 811.602, 811.603, 811.605, 811.607, 811.609, 811.613, 811.616